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Forward-looking statements 

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take investment decisions. 
This report and other statements - written and oral – that we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results 
based on the management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, 
‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance.
We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in assumptions. The 
achievements of results are subject to risks, uncertainties, and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties 
materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated, or projected. 
Readers should keep this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise.



Catalysing our growth



In a world where globalisation has enabled 

business strategy. For many businesses this means 

These seven powerful values enable us to stay focused 
and grow our business. 

The power 
of 7...

‘Living our values’ states our focus on consistently 
doing the right thing and acting responsibly through a 
simple yet compelling promise.

portfolio of brands matching the present and the 
future needs of customers resulting in development 
of stronger stakeholder relationships and building 
competitive advantages. 

premier lifestyle apparel brands focused on global growth while staying true to our core values. 

Catalysing our growth
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3 Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.2

3

Corporate 
identity

We look ahead with the young 
eyes of the future. Our story 
is built on innovation and 
seeing where others fail to see. 
KKCL has successfully made its 
presence felt with fashionable 
denim apparel and gradually 
expanded the offerings to 
trousers, t-shirts and jackets. The 

unique democratic positioning 
within the retail arena by 
entering lifestyle accessories 
segment-shoes, belts, watches, 
bracelets, wallets, caps, bags, 
sunglasses and deodorants, 
perfumes and cosmetics to 
name a few. 

Company philosophy

To be a world-class business enterprise, 
creating values, excellence in every 
business and service to consumers, 
stakeholders and society.



We continue to execute the strategy of creating innovative fashion 
apparel that is at par with the global fashion trends. KKCL is reaching out 
to fashion conscious consumers across India through various channels 
including Exclusive Business Outlets, Multi-Brand Outlets, Large Format 
Stores and K–Lounge stores. 

The presence of retail stores has increased from 31 stores in  
 2005-06 to 252 stores as on 31st March, 2012. With this, the Company 
has a presence in over 138 cities in 21 states across India. The growth 
has been driven by the strength of the key brands of the Company, 
expansion of manufacturing infrastructure, continuous innovation in 
product design and an aggressive retail role-out. What has not changed 
during this period is our relentless and single-minded focus on the 
‘consumer’ – the basic foundation of our business. The Company’s strong 
fashion forecasting and trendsetting abilities have created brands which 
are vibrant, trendy and fashionable. We have the ability to understand 
consumer behavior and with more than 3 decades of presence and 
experience in the fashion apparel industry we are well positioned to 
leverage on our understanding of consumer behavior to propel future 
growth. 

Our journey since the listing has been very encouraging, despite the 
sector facing several challenges along the way. On the apparel business 
front, KKCL is facing issues like subdued demand due to excise duty 

fundamentals, an asset light business model and virtually debt-free 
status of KKCL, we are well-positioned for the future. The dual impact of 
higher product prices in 2011-12 driven by excise duty and high cotton 

and high interest rates have impacted the consumer wallet share for 
discretionary expenditure. The slower volume growth was partially offset 
by higher prices and sales in 2011-12 stood at ` 301.90 Crores, a growth 

` 52.14 
Crores registered a marginal increase of 12.78 %. KKCL enjoys strong 

`7 per share and  
` ` 4 per share 
taking the total dividend to ` 17 per share. From the sale of ` 85.96 
Crores in 2005-06, the Company has grown over 250% and achieved 
sales of ` 301.90 Crores in 

have increased 348% from ` 11.65 Crores to ` 52.14 Crores. 

Dear Shareholders, 
It is my pleasure to present to you the 21st Annual Report of your Company and the 
7th Annual Report since the IPO.

CMD s 
message
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5 Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.4

India with its vast demographics, varied culture and fast changing 
lifestyle presents opportunities and challenges in equal measure. 
Growing urbanisation and rising brand consciousness are paving 
the way for the fashion apparel industry. With India’s GDP dropping 

painting a very bleak scenario. This is further aggravated by rising 

disposable income in the hands of consumers for discretionary spend. 
In my previous letter in the last annual report I have shown a vision 
to touch ` 1000 Crores Net Revenues by 2015-16. It is our persistent 
endeavour to head towards the set target and we continuously 
strive to achieve the same within scheduled time frame subject that 
consumers sentiments improves and overall economy normalise to 
usual growth trajectory. 

Formula One (F1) made a grand debut last year in our country. The 
se and execute a 

world-class sporting spectacle as well as the overwhelming response it 
received from over 95,000 spectators. I feel that managing the fashion 
apparel business is similar to F1. The excitement and thrill to succeed, 
growth opportunity giving an adrenaline rush, astutely tackling the 

to win the race. Presence of strong global competition entails keeping 
a sharp lookout in the rear view while focusing on the road ahead. The 
ability to anticipate the way forward and synchronise the speed makes 
the difference between a winner and a casualty. 

The multiple casualties in the apparel and retail business in India are 

business without getting in the way of danger. As we move towards 
our vision of achieving a turnover of ` 1,000 Crores
that both man and machine are important and have to be robust to 
win the race. We have endeavoured to build an organisation that is 
capable of reaching high speeds but at the same time has internal 
strength and construct to survive potential collisions without fatally 

The presence of retail stores has increased from 31 
stores in 2005-06 to 252 stores as on 31st March, 2012. 
With this, the Company has a presence in over 138 cities 
in 21 states across India. 

impacting the Company. This is being done in the form of building 

which is not leveraged. 

We are proud to say that KKCL follows the best practices and adheres 

good enough in the fashion industry. 

The unique dynamics of this business require a comprehensive risk 
management approach whereby we would want to create adequate 
reserves to safeguard against potential risks associated with pursuing a 
higher growth trajectory. Needless to say, we have and will continue to 
remain a bottom line driven company and strive for being the industry 
benchmark in terms of performance and governance. 

Our brands remain as the strong pillars of the business and continue to 
build on their customer loyalty with continued product innovation and 
brand promotion. ADDICTIONS – the accessories business which is at 
promotional stage has shown encouraging results and achieved sales 
of ` 19.62 Crores, a 287% growth over the previous year. This business 

with the existing products of the Company. We are optimistic about 

enabling the Company to passionately pursue its growth plans. 

I thank all the stakeholders for the trust that they have reposed in KKCL 
and look forward to continued support and participation in the growth 
of the Company. 
 

Kewalchand P. Jain
Chairman & Managing Director



KKCL - A fashion 
brand

Killer

One of the best known designer names in the country offering a modern design aesthetic.

Range: Women and men’s ready-to-wear denims, trousers, cargos, capris, shirts, jackets, 
t-shirts, innerwear (vests and briefs), footwear (shoes and socks), eye-wear and other attractive 
accessories (belts, bracelets, sun glasses, deodrants, personal care products and so on).

Lawman Pg3

The classic and cool 

Leading designer lifestyle brand that delivers ‘preppy with a twist’ 
designs that appeal to a diverse range of consumers

Range: Shirts, blazers, jackets, denim and cotton trousers, 
t-shirts, cargos, capris, drapes, jeggings, skirts, shorts and fashion 
forward accessories complement the collection - innerwear, 
socks, footwear, headwear, sunglasses, trinklets and the likes.

Integriti

Brand for the masses

Range: Casuals and formal shirts, t-shirts, jeans, cotton and 

Our brands have evolved from a few stores to a wide range of stores across 
the country. Our brands appeal to diverse customer needs, providing superior 
quality products at competitive prices. We remain dedicated to growing our 
brands and executing our strategic plans, with the ultimate goal of maximising 
value for our stakeholders.

e

- not just a fashion retailer

O
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7 Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.6

Easies

Semi-formal range for the new young executives

Range: Shirts, trousers, blazers, etc.

Addictions

Range: Deodorants, cosmetics, perfumes, footwear, belts, gym 
wear, swimwear, eyewear, trinklets, formal accessories and more.

K-Lounge stores

KKCL creates desires and makes them achievable. The purpose of the 
direct sales distribution channel is to develop a presence in areas of high 
growth potential and to open iconic sales outlets that are attractive to 
end consumers and serve as a benchmark in the industry. Trend-setting 
retail chain promoted by KKCL, retails all its brands under one roof. 



K-Lounge showrooms 

K-Lounge for her

Exclusive Brand Outlets (EBOs)

43 Integriti

56 Killer

10 Lawman

1 Lawman/Integriti

Addictions - lifestyle accessories stores

National Chain Stores (NCSs), Multi Brand Outlets 

(MBOs) 

Distributors, master stockists, licensees and online 

modes are other modes of distribution.

KKCL markets its products 
through a chain of:

138

2

110

2

Multiple

Manufacturing facilities
KKCL’s designing and manufacturing facilities are mainly located at 
Dadar and Goregoan (Mumbai); Daman and Vapi in Western India.

Multip
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5 year financial highlights

Particulars 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

Sales and Other Income 16,832 15,294 18,631 24,496 31,368

EBITDA 3,915 2,847 5,692 6,869 7,336

Profit before Interest & Tax (PBIT) 3,523 2,343 5,108 7,132 7,891

Profit before Tax (PBT) 3,239 2,072 4,875 6,926 7,632

Profit after Tax (PAT) 2,110 1,426 3,252 4,623 5,214
Cash Profits (Profits after Current Tax 
+ Depreciation + Amortisation)

2,503 1,930 3,836 5,196 8,255

Net Fixed Assets 3,679 4,555 4,308 4,272 4,432

Investments 1,105 3,082 3,290 2,685 5,264

Net Current Assets 11,951 9,706 11,335 13,784 16,942

Deferred Tax Assets 145 144 166 164 173

Total Capital Employed 16,881 17,488 19,099 20,906 24,044

Networth 14,136 15,130 17,519 19,776 22,555

Borrowed Funds 2,745 2,359 1,580 557 1,489

Total Funds Employed 16,881 17,488 19,099 20,333 24,044

(` in Lakhs)
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11 Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.10

Key performance 
indicators 

Strong brands. Stronger performance.

remains relevant to ever-evolving markets and consumer tastes. 

Brand-wise revenue 2012 (%) Brand-wise revenue 2011 (%)
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Others 6.54

Killer 47.04

Easies 2.42

Lawman Pg3 20.68

Integriti 23.32 Others 0.46

Killer 51.26

Easies 2.06

Lawman Pg3 20.93

Integriti 25.29

Fixed Assets Turnover 
Ratio

Return on Capital 
Employed (ROCE) %

Return on Net 
Worth (RONW) %

Dividend Per Share (`) Earnings Per Share (`)
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Our strong 
values - Unleashing the power of seven

as an organisation. These are not values that change 
from time to time, situation to situation or person to 
person, but rather they are the underpinning of our 
company culture. These seven values guide our culture 
and business practice. Today, they are the root of our 
identity and as we are evolving, these seven values 
remain vital to our development.



I. Building our brands

VI. Passion and long-term vision

IV. Strengthening our sustainability

III. Leveraging stable strategies

II. Fuelled by innovation

V. Scalable solutions

VII. Responsible development of communities



I. Building our brands

roots. Building brands as 

Growing our business in all our 
markets is a strategic priority 
for us and it shows how we 
are adapting to our customers’ 
changing needs. Our core 
values signify the roots, helping 
us remain focused, allowing us 
the power to grow and expand 
our various brands overcoming 
geographical, political and 
ideological boundaries. This 
is an area of substantial and 
growing strategic importance 
for us, as we recognise the 
role that our brands play in 
attracting customers and as we 
start to leverage our expertise 
in brand management across 
our markets.



We grow powerful 

lifestyle brands

is our motto. 

 Killer

 Lawman Pg3

 Integriti

Luteya and Khushiaya.

We believe in our brands. By staying true to their 
unique positions, we seek to harness their power  
to inspire deep, enduring relationships with 
customers. With the aid of our operational 
excellence and fashion forward designs, our brands 
have the potential to create growth opportunities. 



II. Fuelled by innovation

We believe in the significance of 
innovation and it has been our 
guiding force since inception. We 
can only maintain our market 
position if we are continually 
searching for innovative solutions 
for our customers. 

A constant commitment to 
innovation, a crucial factor 
for development, has always 
characterised KKCL’s business. 

Making stitch fashionable 
Vertebrae- Washing and stitching with precision 

Emboss – Stitch and wash

Three innovations in three years

3on3
more than 1,500 new designs for every season 



 

and tomorrow.

KKCL has an exclusive team of designers  
in-house, who possess strong designing expertise. 
Our designers seek out ways of dressing, living 
and leading ahead of time: a global vision of 
style. Its inspiration comes from life as well as art, 
architecture and the world of the Internet and 
expressions of our time.



Stability is one of 
the most important 
ingredients of our 
corporate well-being. 
We must be a stable 
organisation that is 
willing to learn, create 
new ideas and adapt to 
new environment.

III. Leveraging stable strategies

experienced tremendous volatility and the 

crisis, we leveraged our stable strategies. We 

of our stable business strategies, investment in our 
world-class brands and concentration on a strong 
balance sheet will continue to drive our long-term 

business returns. 



Values 

Healthy balance sheet 

 
` `

`

or any other economic slowdown.

Asset light model 

standards are maintained. 

Excellent inventory and supply chain 
management 

as maintain lower costs. This has subsequently led to 

13.26% 
CAGR of 
Revenue over 

years

19.83% 
CAGR of PAT 
over the last  

16.62% 
PAT margin 
recorded for the 
year 2011-12

24.30% 
EBITDA margin 
recorded for the 
year 2011-12

The result of all of the above:

`

or any other economic slowdown.

as maintain lower costs. This has subsequently led to 

13.26%
CCAGGRR ooff  
RRReevenuuee over



Our culture and values are 
deeply embedded within the 
organisation. Our culture stimulates 
transparency, accountability and 
collaboration. KKCL creates value 
and aims at growth, not as an 
end in itself, but as a means for 
contributing to progress. 

IV. Strengthening our sustainability



The year gone by was full of economic uncertainties. 
There were moderations in consumer spending across all 

price increases taken by the industry. The industry was 
facing tremendous pressure to pass on the increase in 
input costs to the customers. The year also witnessed 
unstable cotton prices-the raw material for apparels. The 
regulatory changes, like the imposition of excise duty on 
apparel goods in 2011-12, also had an impact on the 
overall growth of the industry.

Notably, we managed through an unprecedented and 

environment by generating increase in sale of apparels 
and increased realisations per unit. This has been 
achieved on the back of strengthening the sustained 
strategies/initiatives taken by the Company. Fully 
integrating sustainability into our business strategy and 
operations at all levels enables success for the long-term.

The Company’s focus on growth forms the centre of 
all activities. This enables us to sustain strong business 
performance for the long-term. 

The Company has always sustained towards working on:

Values and cost control; 

Investing in people and marketing activities; 

Continuous expansion strategies and so on. 

These have catalysed the Company to sustain the 
pressures of an uncertain environment and vulnerabilities.



from its expansive presence. 

Presence in metros, mini-metros and large towns through 
owned stores, retailers and distributors. KKCL also enjoys 

an increased penetration in lesser-known regions as well.

V. Scalable solutions

KKCL has always focused on 
a continuous and profitable 
growth through an increased 
penetration. It has careful 
store expansion strategies 
in place to ensure healthy 
profitability indicators from 
each store.

in 
 across India. 



K-Lounge

K-lounge for her

Killer EBOs

Integriti stores

Lawman Pg3 stores

ADDICTIONS store 

In 2012, KKCL inaugurated  
99 new retail stores comprising 

36
2
28
25
7
1



Our diverse portfolio of brands, passion 
for marketplace execution and long-
term vision underpin our strong 
commitment towards sustainable 
business growth in a responsible way. 

The Company has always been passionate to 
understand the customer and surpass their 
expectations. This passion along with the promoter’s 
long-term vision has truly evolved the Company. 
KKCL’s brand portfolio, wide-spread presence, passion 
and commitment towards achieving a sustainable 
business growth in a very responsible manner are key 
drivers of success.

yy

VI. Passion and long-term vision
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We strive to ensure continuous and sustainable growth of our business and believe in contributing to the development of our 
communities at large. We continue to operate our business in a manner that clearly incorporates our guiding principles and values.

 Environment consciousness

KKCL follows an environment-friendly culture. Keeping in mind, the nature’s scarce resources, we ensure minimum use of paper, water 
and power. We have maintained the policy of ‘Daylight Saving’. We feel it is not only our social responsibility but also an essential 
economic measure. 

VII. Responsible development of communities

We are committed to a set of 
shared values that shape how we 
work every day. We believe that 
clear and consistent commitment 
to these values is vital for 
sustainable business success. Our 
values are an essential part of our 
culture. They are also the basis for 
earning the confidence of all our 
stakeholders. We are continuing 
to live our core values and show 
that we are passionate about our 
community and environment.
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 Employee welfare

KKCL’s employees are its most valuable assets. They are the 
important drivers of the brand value of the organisation. Many 
of Human Resource Department’s initiatives are increasingly 
targeted to ensure that KKCL is the best work place for everyone. 
Emphasis is given to employee engagement activities, employee 
motivation, training and development and corporate social 
responsibility.

Numerous initiatives were carried out during the year to promote 
staff welfare through an improved focus on various healthcare 

individual skills.

Women empowerment

There is a continuous effort on KKCL’s part to increase the 
number of women employees at all levels and units. They are 
given equal opportunities through an increased focus on safety, 
security and healthy working environment for the women 
employees. It is important to note that women employees who 
left their jobs for marriage or childbirth have even rejoined after 
their sabbatical! Special counselling sessions are also held to 
ensure a safe and comfortable work environment.

Student initiatives – Project Student Samarthan

Under this project, KKCL conducts various internship programmes 
for students (across various departments), pursuing their 
academics. Improving knowledge base, factory visits, training 
sessions, participation in retail conferences, and interaction 
with top management form a key part of this project. KKCL also 
provides them with an opportunity to become a part of the 
organisation after completion of training. To date, 29 interns 
have successfully completed their internship and 12 have been 
absorbed into KKCL.

Employees Children Referral Policy

To enhance the sense of belongingness among the 
employees and to encourage their loyalty, employee’s 
children and relatives are considered for employment/
given priority for employment. To date, approximately 
27 of these referrals have already been absorbed into 
the Organisation. This has also resulted into an increase 
in employee morale.

Financial Awareness programs – ‘Small drops make 
mighty oceans’

KKCL took an initiative to encourage savings amongst 
all employees. Employees were educated about various 

SBI Helpdesk - ‘Life is Unpredictable’

their security, Life Insurance and Accident Policy 
Scheme was introduced by the SBI (State Bank of 
India). All SBI account holders were covered under the 
scheme. They were given a coverage of ` 4,00,000 on a 
nominal premium of ` 100 p.a. About 1,000 employees 



 Training and development

Various training and development initiatives are carried 
out at KKCL. 

Training for retail and marketing staff is conducted every 
Saturday by international experts at CHO. 

In order to brush up the knowledge and skills of all the 
employees, KKCL organised IT (Logic) training for all the 
employees at the CHO and also at the stores.

hazards, comprehensive training sessions were carried 
out at the CHO and factories.

World Global Style Networks (WGSN) organised a 
training seminar called ‘Seminar on Fashion Forecast 
Spring Summer 2013’ for designers. The seminar 
offered creative ideas and information on the upcoming 
trends and fashion coupled with details for product 
development.

 Events at KKCL

Promotional events

Various promotional events are held to create a healthy 
and a dynamic work environment. The Company invites 

Rascals, Jihne Mera Dil Luteya, Ek Deewana Tha, Blood 
Money to name a few. Also, singer Gajendra Varma was 
invited to CHO for an audio treat for all the employees. 

Contests

Various motivational contests are held to enhance the 
productivity of all the employees. In order to increase 
their drive for an improved performance, this year’s 
focus was on the employees forming the bottom layer 
of the employee pyramid. KKCL organises various 

of the staff, so that they enjoy their work. This is in line 
with the ‘Happiness Quotient’ that the Company always 
strives to offer.

Contests such as ‘Team Work Pays’, ‘50-50’, ‘Dispatch 
Champion’, ‘Yellow Man’, ‘Star Performance of the Year’ 
were organised throughout the year to motivate the 
employees to perform better.

Team Work Pays Contest

In this contest, all the dispatch assistants who showed 
maximum productivity were given prizes. The best 
team to attain the highest target achievement was also 
awarded.
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50-50 Contests

In this contest, each team was supposed to achieve 50% 
of their target by 50% of the month. Through this, teams 
were motivated to give a better performance.

Dispatch Champion Contest

The contest was organis
Attractive prizes and gifts were given to the employees 
who achieved maximum delivery orders.

Yellow Man Contest

To bring innovative ideas to the core and enhance 
creativity in the employees, the Yellow Man Contest was 
held at the CHO.

Star Performers of the Month

In order to motivate the marketing teams and the 
production units to perform better, a special measure 
is followed – ‘Star Performers of the Month’. These 
highlight the achievements of those teams that 
successfully complete their monthly targets. Each team’s 

out the healthy competitive spirit within the organisation 
and it has indeed helped increase productivity to a 
considerable extent.

 Special occasions and festivities

Festivals

Various festivals and days are celebrated at KKCL. These 
include Diwali, Dussera, Christmas, New Year, Makar 
Sankranti, Republic Day, Holi, Gudi Padwa and Women’s 
Day. ‘Ganesh Sthapana’ was done at the Daman factory 
on the auspicious occasion of Ganesh Chaturthi. Diwali 
and Dussera were celebrated with great pomp and show 
at the Daman, Vapi and the Mumbai factories. These 
festivals bring together people from all faiths.

Others

KKCL rightfully capitalised on a great opportunity to 
promote India’s rich culture and give a brief snapshot 
about the Company. International investor’s of the 
Nalanda Capital Group were cordially invited to be 
acquainted with the long-term vision and mission of 
the Company. All the investors visited the CHO and 
the swanky showrooms to learn about the products. 
The respective brand heads gave precise presentations 
on the current and upcoming brands. At the CHO, 
CMD, Shri Kewalchand Jain gave a comprehensive 
presentation about the Company’s evolving success and 
future plans.
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Award

Global acclaim for Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited’s Annual Report 2010-11 



Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain
Chairman & Managing Director

Spearheaded the groups’ foray in to branded apparel business

affairs of the Company

Trustee of Jatnobai Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan Charitable Trust 

Treasurer of Shree Jain Vyapar Udyog Seva Sansthan

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain
Whole-time Director

Joined the business in 1990 

Heads the manufacturing operations of the Company

Specialises in production and HR related issues

Responsible for ensuring optimum utilisation of production facilities of 
the Company at its units at Dadar, Goregaon, Daman and Vapi

Trustee of Jatnobai Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan Charitable Trust

Treasurer of Daman Industries Association

Mr. Hemant P. Jain
Whole-time Director

Leads the marketing functions of the Company

Was instrumental in launching the new brands of the Company. An avid 

international men’s fashion

Responsible for marketing of Killer and Easies brands. 

Also looks after the retail business of the Company

Trustee of Jatnobai Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan Charitable Trust

Mr. Vikas P. Jain
Whole-time Director

Joined the business in 1992

Heads the operations and distribution functions of the Company

Responsible for marketing of Lawman and Integriti brands

Looks after the retail business of the Company

Spearheads the lifestyle accessories business under the brand ‘Addictions’

Travels extensively and scouts for new technologies in garment 
manufacturing

Trustee of Jatnobai Karmchandji Ratanparia Chauhan Charitable Trust

Directors 
Profile
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Mr. Popatlal F Sundesha
Independent Director

Bachelor of Science (B. Sc.)

Reputed exporter of garments and has a wide range of experience in the 

Awards

President’s award in exports and also Apparels Export Promotion Council 
Award for six years

Director of Apaksh Broadband Ltd

Director of Aksh Opti Fibre Ltd

Mr. Nimish G. Pandya 
Independent Director

Bachelor’s Degree in Law from University of Mumbai.

Member of the Bar Council of Maharashtra and was appointed as a 
Notary Public by the Government of Maharashtra in the year 1993

Specialises in Mergers & Acquisitions, Litigation & Arbitration, 
Trusts and Charities, Corporate, Commercial & Financial Planning & 
Execution, including Transaction Support & Contracts, Intellectual 
Property, Technology, Media & Communications, Competition & Trade, 
Conveyancing & Real Estates and Family & Personal Law

Proprietor at Pandya & Co., Advocates and Notary

Member of council of management of Shree Sathya Sai Trust, 
Maharashtra 

Dr. Prakash A. Mody 
Independent Director

Doctorate (Ph.D.) in Organic Chemistry from the University of Mumbai

Pursued Marketing Management from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of 
Management Studies, University of Mumbai

Also a Graduate Alumni of Harvard Business School having undergone 
the Owner Presidents’ Management Program

Chairman and Managing Director of Unichem Laboratories Limited

Member of Executive Committee of the Indian Drug Manufacturers 
Association

Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar 
Independent Director

Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

taxation; with special emphasis on representation before Income-tax 
appellate authorities at all levels; Tax Audits; Tax and Legal Due Diligence 
and Corporate Tax planning

Senior Partner in Bansi S. Mehta & Co., a reputed Chartered 



Management 
Discussion and Analysis

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
 Net sales surpassed the ` 300 Crores milestone registering an increase of 28% from ` 235.31 

Crores in  FY 2010-11

 EBITDA increased by 7% to ` 73.36 Crores

` 52.14 Crores

 Total dividend increased to ` 17 per share in FY 2011-12 from ` 16.50 per share in  FY 2010-11 
(which included a one-time special dividend of ` 6 per share) 

OVERVIEW

on branded apparel. Despite several efforts the industry was not able to get a roll back. Left with no 

apparel. Coupled with the rising cost of materials, this led to a more than 20% increase in the MRP of 
most branded apparel products causing softening of demand and wholesale margins and realisations. 

boost to the garment and retailing industry.  While the budget proposal resulted in a marginal decrease 

industry has had to face the added challenge of a slowing economy and uncertain consumer sentiments. 

Notwithstanding the challenges, your company continued its growth path and registered an increase in 
sales of 28%. This has been possible due to your Company’s strategy of taking every hurdle in its stride 
and overcoming the challenges by: 

 Focusing on the key brands across the value chain

 Enhancing product portfolio

 Cost optimisation 

FY 2012 FY 2011 
Particulars (` crore) % of sales (` crore) % of sales Growth
Total sales 100.00 236.63 100.00 28%
Operating EBITDA 73.36 24.30 68.7 7%

76.32 25.28 10%
52.14 17.27 46.23 13%

Volume and Realisation 
growth (over FY 2011)

%

Volume growth 12.36
Realisation growth

Stores Nos.
Opened
Closed 23
No. of stores as on 31st March, 
2012

252



FOCUSING ON KEY BRANDS
Over the years, KKCL has launched brands keeping in mind the needs and aspirations of the 
consumer. Each of KKCL brands have been at the forefront of the changing fashion in the industry 
and cater to a relevant segment which has strengthened its association with consumers.

and has accounted for 47% of net sales. The strong appeal of the brand was strengthened further 
with ‘Killer ’ brand being one of the principal sponsors for the Pune Warriors team for the second 
consecutive year in the IPL season of 2012. With a high viewership of IPL in India and abroad we are 

fashion wear has shown robust growth during this year. Integriti is the second largest brand and grew 
at a rate of 21% and accounts for 23% of the net sales of your Company.

Lawman Pg3 – The fashionable, trendy and youthful brand caters to the 16 to 26 years segment and 
has a strong glamour image. Lawman Pg3 is a close third accounting for 21% of the net sales and 
recorded smart growth of 27%. Your Company in earlier season had launched Y-Fi and Vertebrae 
and applied for registration under the Patents Act, Design Act, Copyright Act and Trademark Act. 
In the same series your Company has launched Emboss denims which has stitch and wash effect. 

40 years age group has recorded a growth rate of 56% and accounted for 2% of the total sales. 
Considering the benign demand scenario for semi formal wear, your Company is not investing 

ADDICTIONS – This is the newest business endeavor of your Company which is synergistic with its 
 

Company and various products are sold under the iconic brands of your Company. The foray and 
efforts in this new growth area have yielded very encouraging results and sales of ADDICTIONS 
products have reached close to ` 20 Crores and constitute 7% of total sales. 

7 Other Brand

47 Killer

2 Easies

21 Lawman

23 Integriti

FY 2012 (%)

2 Other Brand

50 Killer

2 Easies

21 Lawman

25 Integriti

FY 2011 (%)
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ENHANCING PRODUCT PORTFOLIO
The core product portfolio of your Company across apparel includes jeans, t-shirts, shirts, trousers 
and jackets. 

ADDICTIONS Lifestyle accessories: With a view to leveraging the brand loyalty amongst customers 

accessories under the ADDICTIONS umbrella. The product range includes deodorants, personal care 
products, wallets, bags, watches, belts, undergarments, socks, handkerchiefs, sipper bottles, caps, eye 
wear etc. These products have seen strong growth and sales of ADDICTIONS accessories touched 
`

of net sales. Sales of jeans continued to register robust growth of 25% over the previous year. 

Shirts and T-Shirts : Sales of Shirts and T-Shirts grew by 11% and 32% respectively and represented 
18% and 4% of the net sales respectively.

Trousers: Trousers accounted for 11% of the sales declined by 3%.

EXPANDING PRESENCE AND REACH ACROSS INDIA

enhanced the distribution process by appointing Master Stockiest in key regions. 

Multi Brand Outlets (MBOs) – MBOs continue to dominate the distribution strength of your 
Company and also provide your Company with an unparalleled and diverse footprint across the 
country. MBOs account for the largest portion of net sales at 58% and recorded a growth of 24% 
over last year.

Management Discussion and Analysis

4 Others 

57 Jeans

20  
Shirts

15 Trouser

4 T-Shirts

FY 2011 (%)

11 Others 

56 Jeans

18  
Shirts

11 Trouser

4 T-Shirts

FY 2012 (%)



K Lounge

K Lounge stores are increasingly accounting for a higher share of sales. These stores provide a 

accessories to match their fashion quotient. 

National Chain Stores – The large format stores accounted for 6% of the total sales and sales 

and access.

Factory outlets – Factory outlets accounted for 3% of net sales and grew 12%.

Exports

ADDICTIONS – Your Company has initiated the launch of ADDICTION stores which will retail 
lifestyle accessories. These are smaller stores and will house over 50 fashion paraphernalia to 
complement the look and feel for the fashion conscious consumer while adding to the visibility of 

with the growth in the accessories business. 

FY 2011 (%)

25 K Lounge

 
N. C Stores

3 Factory 
Outlet

60 MBO 58 MBO

FY 2012 (%)

6 
N. C Stores

3 Factory 
Outlet
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STORE ROLL-OUT

Your Company has opened 99 new stores and closed 23 stores during the year, thereby taking 
the total store count to 252 as of 31st March 2012, an increase of 44% over the previous year. With 
this your Company now has presence across more than 138 cities in 21 states in India. With 140 

Company brands and account for more than 50% of the stores of your Company. This is followed 
by 56 Killer EBOS, 43 Integriti EBOs, 10 Lawman EBOs and balance across other formats like factory 
outlets.    

Management Discussion and Analysis

Tamil Nadu (7 Stores)

Andhra Pradesh (10 Stores)

Chattisgarh (18 Stores)

Orissa (21 Stores)

Jharkhand (4 Stores)

Jammu And Kashmir (1 Store)

Bihar (32 Stores)

Uttar Pradesh (35 Stores)

Uttarakhand (4 Stores)

Delhi (5 Stores)

Assam (6 Stores)

Goa (2 Stores)

Maharashtra (40 Stores)

Karnataka (11 Stores)

Madhya Pradesh (12 Stores)

Kerala (1 Store)

Gujarat (14 Stores)

Punjab (9 Stores)

Rajasthan (10 Stores)

Haryana (8 Stores)

West Bengal (2 Stores)



GEOGRAPHICAL MIX

geographical spread across India. 

The Eastern region now accounts for the highest shares of sales at 31%, followed by the Western 

inroads in to the Northern markets where sales increased by 43% to ` 52.44 Crores followed by the 
Eastern region where sales increased by 35% to `

` 7.26 Crores to ` 11.76 
Crores. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Sales
Your Company achieved the milestone of crossing ` 300 Crores in sales in FY 2011-12 
representing a growth of 28% over the previous year. This level of business represents sales value 

`

` 400 
Crores in  FY 2010-11.

The growth in apparel sales was 22% and was driven by a combination of 12% growth in volumes 

realisation per unit from ̀  686 per unit in FY 2010-11 to ̀  748 per unit in FY 2011-12.  The overall 
sales growth was also aided by the strong growth in sales from accessories which increased by 
282% to almost ` 20 Crores in FY 2011-12.

16 North

23 South

FY 2011 (%)

17 North

28 West

31 East

20 South

FY 2012 (%)
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Cost of Goods Sold:
This year cost of goods sold increased by 46% mainly due to the increase of traded goods which 

accessories segment is still in a rapid growth stage, this increase in the cost of traded goods is 
normal. Apart from the increase in traded goods, the cost of material consumed increased by 25% 

due to the increase in cotton prices. 

Other Costs:
Your Company implemented cost optimisation measures and initiatives to enhance productivity 
resulting in personnel costs increasing only by 13% to ` 

` 

` 

26% to `

` 46.23 Crores in FY 2010-11 to ` 52.14 Crores in FY 
2011-12 primarily driven by robust increase of 20.40% in Sales volume alongwith an increase of 2.4% 
in sales realisation per unit.

up of the newly launched accessories business which is in a promotional stage and requires higher 

growth on 7% in the EBITDA from ` 68.70 Crores in FY 2010-11 to ` 73.38 Crores in FY 2011-12. 

Company has appointed master stockiests which require sharing of higher trade margins but will 

Other income recorded an increase of 41% from ` 8.34 Crores in FY 2010-11 to ` 11.78 Crores in 
FY 2011-12 due to the strong cash position and higher interest rates during the year. This led to a 

` 46.23 Crores in FY 2010-11 to ` 52.14 Crores in 
FY 2011-12. 

Financial Position:

Management Discussion and Analysis



other listed securities in India. CRISIL also commented that the ‘company’s ability to pass through 
escalations in input costs to its customers depicts the robustness of its business model.’

Your Company continues to be a debt free company with strong liquidity position. Total cash and 
cash equivalents as on 31st March 2012 amounted to ` 101.55 Crores. 

Technological Initiatives
Apparel industry is a very dynamic and fast-changing industry. There can be sudden high-demand 
for a garment which may have been worn by a celebrity or showcased at a fashion-show. This rapid 
change in fashion and demand requires introduction of technology which can improve the designing 

award winning software from Tukatech. 

 TUKAcad will allow each pattern maker to make and grade patterns with better accuracy in a 
shorter amount of time

allowing your company to be more innovative and offer more choices to their consumers

OUTLOOK
The prevailing macroeconomic environment continues to be uncertain and the lethal combination 

the short run as disposable incomes get affected. While fashion apparel is considered a discretionary 

items. This is where your Company has created a business model with strong brands to capture 
demand across value segments and a distribution model that taps into key geographies across India 
including Metros and Tier II and III towns and cities. 

In addition, your Company has launched lifestyle accessories which complement fashion apparel and 
hence provide the consumer with multiple and relevant choices to enhance their lifestyle and image. 
We believe that the growth in apparel sales has been impacted due to the steep price rise witnessed 
last year and there is generally a lag before consumers get accustomed to the higher price points. 

TAXATION REFORMS

on the industry and your Company. GST will allow companies to streamline its logistics operations 
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aggregate smaller warehouses into a bigger one. GST will also help reduce inventory costs as under 

GST companies will collect from their customers at every sale is only payable to the government 

ultimately GST will reduce costs on raw materials and commodities which will enable us to reduce 
costs.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
The retail industry is ever-increasing in India and with it come opportunities and threats to your 
Company. The increase in disposable-income among families, development in the retail infrastructure, 
increase in fashion and brand consciousness as well as the increase in the standard-of-living, will 
provide enough boost for the industry to keep growing into the future

The retail sector continues to have restrictions on FDI . The backtracking of the government’s 

politically-charged the FDI regulations are for the government. The FDI approval in single-brand 

This presents your Company with increased competition from foreign players who want to enter the 
lucrative Indian retail market with a single brand. This move will certainly increase competition in the 

addition, your Company believes that the brand and the business we have built over the years is not 
only capable to withstand any competition but also surpass it.

Last year, your Company introduced an attractive line of fashion and lifestyle accessories vertical. 
Your Company is happy to report that the response of the customers has been positive and your 

is still in a nascent phase will require time for it to be accretive to your Company.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors’ Report

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 21st Annual Report together with the audited accounts 
of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

(Amount in Rupees)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2012

Year Ended 
31st March, 2011

1 2,366,211,454
2 Other Income 117,814,212
3
4

following)
a. Finance charges
b. Provision for depreciation
c. 230,271,646

5 521,408,011 462,333,280
i 15,000 Nil
ii 462,333,280

6
i Bonus shares issued during the year Nil Nil
ii Proposed Dividend (Including Dividend 

iii Transfer to General Reserve 52,140,801 46,233,328
7 Dividend (in `) per ordinary share 17.00 16.5
8 Paid up Equity capital 123,250,370 123,250,370

1,040,325,344
10

TURNOVER & PROFITS:
st March, 2012, the sales and 

operating income was `  
` 52.14 crores representing a growth of 12.78% over the previous year. 

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors had in their meeting held on 20th  
` `

of interim dividend was 4th November, 2011 and the said interim dividend was paid in November 2011. 

The Board of Directors had in their meeting held on 2nd March, 2012 declared the second interim dividend of 
` `

of interim dividend was 16th March, 2012 and the said interim dividend was paid in March 2012. 

` `

year ended 2011-12. 

The dividend once approved by the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting will be paid out of 
`

An amount of `



OVERALL PERFORMANCE AND OUTLOOK
Being in the fashion business, your Company needs to keep innovating to meet the customer’s 

Your company is uniquely placed in the sector with an integrated business model that encompasses 
the complete value chain of design, manufacturing and sourcing, distribution, logistics and retailing. 
Your Company has an in-house team of designers that track national and international trends to 
create innovative fashionable products that customers would relate to. Your Company has state of 
the art manufacturing facilities that ensure quality and timely deliveries. This unique business model 
along with a strong and committed focus on its power brands has helped your Company sustain the 
challenging business environment. 

All the key brands of your Company, Killer, Integriti, Lawman Pg3 and Easies, recorded healthy growth 

The Indian retail market provides a big growth opportunity but also poses challenges for chasing 

growth opportunities.  

more top of the line international brands entering Indian market the competition in the branded 

While your company has an established presence in Metros and Tier –I cities your company is also 
penetrating into Tier -II and Tier – III cities. Your company would continue its thrust on product and 
design innovation. The apparel accessories business looks promising and would fuel your company’s 
growth trajectory. Your company’s presence in the women’s segment will drive your company’s 
growth with an increasing preference for western wear in the women’s segment. 

optimistic about the year ahead.
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Directors’ Report

INVESTMENT IN WHITE KNITWEAR PRIVATE LIMITED: 
Your company had invested in aggregate ` 34,550,000 (P.Y. ` 34,550,000) in Joint Venture “White 
Knitwear Private Limited” (WKPL). WKPL had acquired land in Surat SEZ and created building for 

demand in international market, most of the members of SEZ shelved their projects and approached 

proceeds to return it to joint venture partners.

No provision for diminution in the value of investment is considered necessary for the year ended 
March 2012 in view of the value of underlying assets base of joint venture, however your company 
as a matter of abundant precaution made provision aggregates to ` `

provision is grouped under ‘Other long term provisions’.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION:
Related party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to accounts. 

DIRECTORS:

company, Mr. Dinesh P. Jain, Mr. Nimish G. Pandya and Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha, Directors of your 
Company would retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible have 
offered themselves for reappointment.   

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:



to material departures;

(ii) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgements and estimates  that are  reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair 

of your Company for the year  under review;

safeguarding  the assets of your Company and for preventing and detecting fraud  and other 
irregularities;

concern’ basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
A detailed review of operations, performance and future outlook of your Company is given separately 
under the head Management Discussion and Analysis and forms a part of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT:
Your company has put in place a Code of Conduct effective 14th January, 2006, for its Board members 
and Senior Management Personnel. Declaration of compliance with the code of conduct have been 

from the Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman & Managing Director forms a part of this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
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Directors’ Report

Mrudul D. Inamdar (Chairman of Audit Committee), Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha and Mr. Nimish G. 
Pandya.  

FIXED DEPOSIT:
Your company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies 

LISTING FEES:

PENDING SHARES UPLOAD:
Your Company has opened a demat suspense account with the Edelwise Securities Limited and 
credited all the shares issued pursuant to the Initial Pubic Offer(IPO), which remain unclaimed despite 
the best efforts of your Company and Registrar to Issue.

i) Number of Shareholders outstanding at the beginning of the year: 7 

ii) Number of shareholders who approached your Company for transfer of shares from suspense 
account during the year: Nil

iii) Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account during the year : Nil

iv) Aggregate number of shareholders outstanding at the end of the year: 7

shares.

AUDITORS:

N.A. Shah Associates, Chartered Accountants, retire at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General 



Meeting of your Company and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. 

COST AUDITOR:

year 2012-13.

PERSONNEL:
Employee relations continued to be cordial during the year ended 31st March, 2012.  Your Company 

communication skills, public speaking etc. for its employees that enhance both personal as well 
career growth of the employees. These programs are conducted round the year by professional 
trainers as well as by the human resource department of your Company. Your company has also 
encouraged its employees to attend seminars and discussions conducted by professional institutions 
and trade bodies. The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation to all the employees in your 
Company for their sustained efforts and immense contribution to the high level of performance and 
growth of the business during the year.  

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 217 (2A) OF COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ 
WITH  COMPANIES (PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES) RULES 1975:

 
31st

the statement of particulars of employees under Section 217 (2A) of the Act. Any shareholder 
interested in obtaining a copy of the said statement may write to the Company Secretary at the 

INFORMATION  UNDER SECTION 217 (1)(E) OF COMPANIES  ACT, 1956 READ 
WITH  COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT  OF  THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES 1988:
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Directors’ Report

A.  Conservation Of Energy

company strives to curtail the consumption of energy on a continued basis.

 
Not Applicable

C.  Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

 Total Foreign Exchange used and earned:

FOB Value   ` 117,381,000

Domestic Sales  NIL

` 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
The Board would like to place on record its sincere  appreciation for  the wholehearted support and 
contribution made by  its customers, its shareholders, and all  its employees across the country, as 
well as the various  Government Departments,  Banks, Distributors, Suppliers  and  other business 

                                 For and on behalf of the Board
             

 Kewalchand P. Jain
Chairman & Managing Director

Dated:  10th May, 2012
Place: Mumbai
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Corporate 
Governance Report

I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: – 

Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd. is committed to good Corporate Governance in order to enhance 
shareholders’ value. The Company believes that Corporate Governance is not an end in itself but 

on Corporate Governance enshrines the goal of achieving the highest levels of transparency, 
accountability and equity in all spheres of its operations and in all its dealings with the shareholders, 
employees, the Government and other parties. It is the Company’s belief that good ethics make 
good business sense and our business practices are in keeping with the spirit of maintaining the 
highest level of ethical standards.

the Company has complied in all material respects with the requirements of Corporate Governance 

of India Ltd.

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: –

(a) Composition of the Board

st March, 2012 the Board of Directors of the Company comprises 

P. Jain, Mr. Dinesh P. Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain, who are also the promoters of the Company. The 

law. The composition of the Board and other relevant details relating to Directors as on  31st March, 
2012 are given below

Committee.

Name of the Director Designation Category of 
Directorship

**No. of other 
Directorship

**No. of Committee 

membership
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain Chairman & 

Managing Director
Promoter & 8 1

Whole-time 
Director

Promoter & 8 1

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain Whole-time 
Director

Promoter & 7 0

Mr. Vikas P. Jain Whole-time 
Director

Promoter & 6 0

Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha Director Independent 3 3

Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar Director Independent 1 1

Dr. Prakash A. Mody Director Independent 10 2

Mr. Nimish G. Pandya Director Independent 0 3



Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.

(i) The meetings of the Board of Directors are scheduled well in advance. The Board Members 
are presented in advance with the detailed agenda in respect of all Board meetings. During the 

 26th May, 2011, 28th July, 2011, 20th October, 2011, 21st January, 2012 and 2nd March, 2012. The 
gap between two board meetings is less than four months.

(ii) The attendance record of each of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the year ended 
on  31st March, 2012 and during the last Annual General Meeting is as under: –

Directors No. of Board Meetings 
Attended

Attendance At The Last AGM

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain 5 Present
5 Present

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain 3 Present
Mr. Vikas P. Jain 4 Present
Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha 4 Present
Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar 5 Absent
Dr. Prakash A. Mody 3 Present
Mr. Nimish G. Pandya 5 Present

(c) Code of Conduct 

 In line with the Company’s objective of following the best Corporate Governance Standards 
the Board of Directors have laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior 
Management of the Company. The Code is effective from  14th January, 2006.

(d) Details of shares held in the Company as on  31st

Name of the Directors Number of shares held
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain* 701,411

703,150
Mr. Dinesh P. Jain* 741,650
Mr. Vikas P. Jain* 733,086
Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha** Nil
Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar Nil
Dr. Prakash A. Mody 336
Mr. Nimish G. Pandya Nil

*Note:
The said shares held by Mr. K. P. Jain includes 16,000 equity shares held in his capacity as Karta of 
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The said shares held by Mr. D. P. Jain includes 16,000 equity shares held in his capacity as Karta of 

The said shares held by Mr. V. P. Jain includes 16,000 equity shares held in his capacity as Karta of 

**Note:

Private Limited is the holder of 16,000 Equity Shares. Mr. Popatlal Sundesha, Independant Non-

Limited.

III. AUDIT COMMITTEE: –

Constitution of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was constituted on  14th

Name of the Directors
Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar #Chairman 
Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha Member
Mr. Nimish G. Pandya Member

# Mr. Nimish G. Pandya was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee for the period 
31st   August, 2011 to  10th October, 2011 due to preoccupation of Mr. Inamdar. Mr. Mrudul Inamdar 
resumed his duty as the Chairman of Audit Committee from  11th October, 2011.

Mr. Abhijit B. Warange – Company Secretary & General Manager - Compliance acts as the secretary 
of the Committee.

Meetings of Audit Committee
During the year ended 31st th May, 2011, 
30th June, 2011, 28th July, 2011, 20th October, 2011 and 21st January, 2012. The attendance of each 
Audit Committee member is given hereunder: –

Name of the Audit Committee 
Member

No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended

Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar 5 5
Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha 5 3
Mr. Nimish G. Pandya 5 5



Attendees

and the Internal Auditors are the permanent invitees to the Audit Committee meetings.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

Powers
1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2. To seek information from any employee.

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

Roles

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors.

board for approval, with particular reference to:

a.  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Management;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

board for approval.

6. Reviewing, with the Management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of 
the internal control systems.
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7.  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 

structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 
nature and reporting the matter to the board.

10. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

11. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

13. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee.

The Company has system and procedures in place to ensure that the Audit Committee mandatorily 
reviews:

submitted by management; 

 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

 The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

IV. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Composition of committee
The Remuneration Committee was constituted on  14th November, 2005. The Committee consists of 

Name of the Directors
Mr. Nimish G. Pandya  Chairman 
Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha Member
Dr. Prakash A. Mody Member

Mr. Abhijit B. Warange – Company Secretary & General Manager - Compliance acts as the secretary 
of the Committee.



The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee includes determining and reviewing the 
remuneration payable to managerial personnel and any revision thereof.

No meeting of the Remuneration committee was held during the year ended 31st March, 2012.

Details of sitting fees, remuneration etc., paid to Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2012.

Name of the Director Sitting Fees Salary Contribution 
to PF and 

Perquisites

Total

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain Nil ` 7,500,000 ` `

Nil ` 7,500,000 ` `

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain Nil ` 7,500,000 ` `

Mr. Vikas P. Jain Nil ` 7,500,000 ` `

Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha ` 140,000 Nil Nil ` 140,000
Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar ` 200,000 Nil Nil ` 200,000
Dr. Prakash A. Mody ` 60,000 Nil Nil ` 60,000
Mr. Nimish G. Pandya ` 200,000 Nil Nil ` 200,000

as separate actuarial valuation for the Whole-time Directors is not available. 

Company, the resolution of the Board of Directors and the members. 

There is no provision for severance fees. 

Remuneration Policy of the Company 

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors
 
 

Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Directors. 

Company, the resolution of the Board of Directors and the members. The remuneration paid to the 

aforesaid.

Committee of the Board. Based on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the Board 
decides on the revision subject to the shareholders approval.
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Remuneration Policy for Non Executive Directors

through their contribution to the Management of the Company. In addition, they can safeguard the 

and its Committee.

Directors have no other pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Company. The sitting fees 

V. SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE: –

Composition of Committee
The Shareholders and Investors Grievance Committee has been constituted to look into investors’ 

Directors:

Name of the Directors
Mr. Nimish G. Pandya Chairman 
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain Member

Member

Mr. Abhijit B. Warange – Company Secretary & General Manager - Compliance acts as the secretary 
of the Committee.

into the redressal of shareholders and investors complaints like transfer of shares, non receipt of 
balance sheet, non receipt of dividends, etc.

Status report of Investors complaints for the year ended 31st March, 2012

No. of complaints received - 1

No. of complaints resolved - 1

No. of complaints pending - NIL

Mr. Abhijit B. Warange – Company Secretary & General Manager - Compliance



VI. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: –
Location, time and date where the three immediately preceding Annual General Meetings of the 
Company were held are given below:

Financial Year Day & Date Time Venue
Monday, 3rd August, 3.00 p.m

Dubash Marg (Behind Prince of Wales 
Museum), Mumbai – 400 001

Thursday, 5th August, 
2010 

4.30 p.m
India Ltd., Brabourne Stadium, Dinshaw 
Vachha Road, Mumbai – 400 020

2010-11 Tuesday, 6th 
September, 2011

3.00 p.m

Dubash Marg (Behind Prince of Wales 
Museum), Mumbai – 400 001

Special Resolutions passed in previous three Annual General Meetings
18th Annual General Meeting:  At this meeting one Special Resolution was proposed, seconded 
and passed with more than three-fourths majority on show of hands. This special resolution was with 

Company as Manager not being a Manager within the meaning of Section 2(24) read with Section 

19th Annual General Meeting:
and passed with more than three-fourths majority on show of hands. This special resolution were 
with regard to 1) Appointment and remuneration of Ms. Arpita Jain, a relative of Mr. Kewalchand 

 
Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 year w.e.f. 
1st

the Company till such time he continues to be a Director liable to retire by rotation; 4) Remuneration 
and reappointment of Mr. Dinesh P. Jain as the Wholetime Director of the Company till such time he 
continues to be a Director liable to retire by rotation; and 5) Remuneration and reappointment of Mr. 
Vikas P. Jain as the Wholetime Director of the Company till such time he continues to be a Director 
liable to retire by rotation.

20th Annual General Meeting:
and passed with more than three-fourths majority on show of hands. These special resolution were 

Dinesh P. Jain and Mr. Vikas P. Jain, Directors of the Company and revision of remuneration payable 
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No special Resolution was passed by postal ballot in the last Annual General Meeting and also no 
resolution requiring approval of shareholders by way of postal ballot is proposed to the passed in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

VII. DISCLOSURES: –

 The Register of Contracts containing the transactions in which Directors are interested is placed 

any other Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital market during the last three years.

of the Listing Agreement.

(v) Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se:

VIII. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: -

Times, DNA, Mint, Business Standard and Lokmat. The results of the Company are normally published 

presentations made to institutional investors have been displayed on the website of the Company. 

The Company does not have the system of intimating shareholders individually of its quarterly 

are given copies thereof after consideration of results by the Board and publication in newspapers. 

shareholders in line with its continued thrust for better Corporate Governance. The Company would 
make sincere attempt to continue this trend in the years ahead.

The Management discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Annual Report.



IX. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION: -

a) Annual General Meeting
 Date & Time : 3rd August, 2012 at 12 p.m.

   Brabourne Stadium, Dinshaw Vachha Road, Mumbai - 400 020
st April to 31st March 

c) Dates of Book Closure
 27th July, 2012 to 3rd August, 2012 (both days inclusive)

d) Dividend payment date
 Dividend when sanctioned by shareholders will be made payable on or after 10th August, 2012. 

e) Listing on Stock Exchanges
 The equity Shares of the Company got listed on  13th April, 2006 and continue to be listed at 

Mumbai: 400 051.

 Note:
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g) Market Price Data.
 The monthly high & low quotations of the Company’s shares traded on the Bombay Stock 

2011-2012 are as under:

Months BSE NSE
` Per share) Low (` Per share) ` Per share) Low (` Per share)

April 2011 535.00 530.05
May 2011 523.15 530.00
June 2011 737.00 540.00 736.80 540.00
July 2011 660.25 660.00
August 2011 667.10
September 2011 875.00 747.50 875.00 735.15
October 2011 843.60 752.20 835.00 752.20
November 2011 600.00 812.00 665.00
December 2011 756.00 586.55
January 2012 616.00 606.65
February 2012 703.20 614.25
March 2012 765.00 606.00 630.00
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 Link Intime India Private Limited       
 C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compounds, 
 L.B.S. Marg,  Bhandup (West), 
 Mumbai-400078

 Email: mumbai@linkintime.co.in 
 Website: www.linkintime.co.in

j) Share Transfer System  
 Shares held in the dematerialised form are electronically traded in the Depositories and the 

to update their records and to send all corporate communications, dividend warrants etc. 
Physical shares received for dematerialisation are processed and completed within a period of 
15 days from the date of receipt provided they are in order in every respect. Bad deliveries are 
immediately returned to Depository participants under advice to the shareholders within the 
aforesaid period.

 Transfers in Physical forms are registered by the registrar and transfer agents immediately on 
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st

No of equity shares Shareholders Amount
Number % to total In ` % to total

1–5,000 2,107,240 1.71
5,001–10,000 74 1.43 0.47
10,001–20,000 37 0.72 558,310 0.45
20,001–30,000 0.56 722,070
30,001–40,000 0.17 311,060 0.25
40,001–50,000 7 0.14 332,330 0.27
50,001–10,0000 25 0.48 1.40
10,0001 & above
Total 100.00 100.00

Shareholding Pattern as on  31st  March, 2012

Category No. of Shares % to total
Indian Promoters 74.06
Mutual Funds
FII’s 12.08
NRI 23,881 0.20
Bodies Corporate 2.88
Independent Director 336 0.00
Clearing Members 5,252 0.04

4,388 0.04
Trusts 820 0.00
Public 5.73
Total 100.00

Kornerstone Retail Limited, Kewal Kiran Management Consultancy Ltd., Kewal Kiran Realtors and 
Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd., White Knitwears Pvt. Ltd., Kewal Kiran Finance Pvt. Ltd., Kewal Kiran Media 
and Communication Ltd., Kalpvriksh Realtors and Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd. and Lord Gautam Charitable 



Shareholding pattern graph as on  31st March, 2012 (%) 

l) Dematerialisation of equity shares
 The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form and are available 

for trading under both the Depository Systems –NSDL (National Securities Depository Limited) 

of the Company are held in dematerialised form with NSDL & CDSL as on  31st March, 2012.

 Liquidity

 
conversion date and likely impact on equity

n) Plant Locations
 Vapi

 IInd Phase, G.I.D.C

 Gujarat

 Vapi

 IInd Phase, G.I.D.C

 Gujarat

74.06 Indian Promoters
Mutual Funds

12.08 FII’s

0.20 NRI

2.88 Bodies Corporate

0.04 Clearing Members

5.73 Public 

No. of Shares 12,325,037 100.00
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 Daman

 Somnath Road, Dhabel

 Mumbai

 Opp Virwani Industrial Estate
 Goregaon (East), 
 Mumbai - 400 063

 71-73, Kasturchand Mill Estate
 Bhawani Shankar Road, 
 Dadar (West), 
 Mumbai - 400 028

o) Address for Investor Correspondence 
 Shareholding related queries
 Link Intime India Private Limited      
 C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compounds, 
 L.B.S. Marg,  Bhandup (West), 
 Mumbai - 400078

 Email: mumbai@linkintime.co.in 
 Website: www.linkintime.co.in

 General correspondence
 Kewal Kiran Estate, 
 Behind Tirupati Udyog, 

 Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063

 Email: abhijitw@kewalkiran.com 
 Website: www.kewalkiran.com 

been created and the same is available on company’s website www.kewalkiran.com



1] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH MR. KEWALCHAND P. JAIN IS A 
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
Kornerstone Retail  Ltd. Chairman
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd. Chairman
Kewal Kiran Management Consultancy Ltd. Chairman
Kewal Kiran Finance Pvt. Ltd Chairman
Kewal Kiran Media and Communication Ltd. Chairman
White Knitwears Pvt. Ltd. Director
Kalpvriksh Realtors and Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd Chairman
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Chairman

Name of the Company Name of the Committee
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd. Shareholders and Investors Grievance Committee Member

2] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH MR. HEMANT P. JAIN IS A CHAIRMAN/ 
DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
Kornerstone Retail  Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Management Consultancy Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Finance Pvt. Ltd Director
White Knitwears Pvt. Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Media and Communication Ltd. Director
Kalpvriksh Realtors and Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd Director
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Director 

Name of the Company Name of the Committee
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Shareholders and Investors Grievance Committee Member

Annexure to 
Corporate Governance
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3] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH MR. DINESH P. JAIN IS A CHAIRMAN/
DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
Kornerstone Retail  Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Management Consultancy Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Finance Pvt. Ltd Director
Kewal Kiran Media and Communication Ltd. Director

Director
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Director 

4] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH MR. VIKAS P. JAIN IS A CHAIRMAN/ 
DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
Kornerstone Retail  Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Realtors and Infrastructures Pvt. Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Management Consultancy Ltd. Director
Kewal Kiran Finance Pvt. Ltd Director
Kewal Kiran Media and Communication Ltd. Director
Lord Gautam Charitable Foundation Director 

5] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH MR. POPATLAL F. SUNDESHA IS A 
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
Fulchand Finance Pvt. Ltd. Chairman
Apaksh Broadband Ltd. Director
Aksh Opti Fibre Ltd. Director

Name of the Company Name of the Committee
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Audit Committee Member
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Remuneration Committee Member
Aksh Opti Fibre Ltd. Audit Committee Member



6] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH MR. MRUDUL D. INAMDAR IS A 
CHAIRMAN/DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
Kanbans Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd. Director

Name of the Company Name of the Committee
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Audit Committee Chairman

7] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH DR. PRAKASH A. MODY IS A CHAIRMAN/ 
DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
Unichem Laboratories Ltd. Chairman
Viramrut Trading Pvt. Ltd. Director
A.V.M.  Capital Services  Pvt. Ltd. Director
PM Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. Director
Pranit Trading Pvt. Ltd. Director
Chevy Capital Services Pvt. Ltd. Director
Niche Generics Ltd. U.K Director

Director
Unichem SA (Pty) Ltd. (South Africa) Director
Unichem Pharmaceuticals (USA) Inc Director

Name of the Company Name of the Committee
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Remuneration Committee Member
Unichem Laboratories Ltd.  Shareholders Grievance Committee Member

8] BODIES CORPORATE OF WHICH MR. NIMISH G. PANDYA IS A CHAIRMAN/ 
DIRECTOR

Name of the Company
NIL NIL

Name of the Company Name of the Committee
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Remuneration Committee Chairman
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Shareholders and Investors Grievance 

Committee
Chairman

Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.  Audit Committee Member
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Auditors Certificate

To,
The Members of 
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.

Clothing Ltd. (the Company), for the year ended on 31st

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. 

Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is 

us and representations made by the management, we certify that the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the abovementioned clause of 

4. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

Company.

For N.A. Shah Associates For Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants, Chartered Accountants,
Firm’s Registration No. 116560W

Sandeep Shah Satish Trivedi
Partner Partner
Membership No.: 37381 Membership No.: 38317
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: Date: 10th May, 2012         Date: 10th May, 2012

Certificate of Compliance with the 
Code of Conduct
I, Kewalchand P. Jain, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, hereby declare that the 
company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board Members and Senior Management, at a 
meeting of the Board of Directors held on 14th January, 2006 and the Board Members and Senior 

31st March, 2012.
For Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.

Kewalchand P. Jain
Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th May, 2012



Chairman and Managing 
Director’s and Chief Financial 
Officer’s Certification

The Board of Directors
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd.
Mumbai

Dear Sirs,

Agreement

We certify the following:

best of our knowledge and belief:

i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading.

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 

d) We have indicated to the auditors and Audit committee

Kewalchand P. Jain Shantilal Kothari 
Chairman & Managing Director
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To,

The Members of 

KEWAL KIRAN CLOTHING LTD.

our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.   

audit;

i)  In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2012; 

Auditors’ Report 

For N.A. Shah Associates For Jain & Trivedi

Sandeep Shah Satish Trivedi
Partner Partner

Auditors’ Report 

72



(i) In respe

and the nature of its assets. 

(b) Since there are no loans given or availed, sub clauses (iii) {(b) to (g)} of the Order are not applicable.

`

been made and maintained in respect of manufacturing of apparels and generation of electricity from wind power.

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report 

Auditors’ Report
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payable. 

of ` 

pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

institutions. 

question of reporting whether the term loans are applied for the purpose for which they have been obtained does not arise.

on short-term basis have not been used for long term investments.

unutilised amounts in respect of public issue made in the earlier years.

or by the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

For N.A. Shah Associates For Jain & Trivedi

Sandeep Shah Satish Trivedi
Partner Partner
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2012

`)
Particulars
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 2.1 

2.2 

Non-Current Liabilities
Other Long-Term Liabilities 2.3 
Long-Term Provisions

Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short-Term Provisions

 2,852,736,224  2,518,597,836 
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

 -   

2.10 
2.11 
2.12 
2.13 

Current Assets
Current Investments
Inventories

Cash & Cash Equivalents

TOTAL  2,852,736,224  2,518,597,836 
1 & 2

The notes referred to above form integral part of balance sheet
As per our audit report of even date

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
N. A. Shah Associates Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116560W Firm Registration No.: 113496W

Sandeep Shah Satish C. Trivedi Kewalchand P. Jain Vikas P. Jain
Partner Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director
Membership No. 37381 Membership No. 38317

Abhijit B. Warange

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Company Secretary & General 
Manager - Compliance

Balance Sheet | Statement of Profit and Loss 
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`)

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2012 

For the Year  
Ended 

 31st March 2011
INCOME

2.20 
Other Income 2.21 

3,136,798,485  2,449,611,445 
EXPENDITURE

2.22 
Cost of Material Consumed 2.23 

Personnel Cost

2,373,651,983  1,757,006,519 

 -   
521,408,011  462,333,280 

Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted  (Face Value of ` 10 each) 
Weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share -Basic 
and Diluted

1 & 2

Statement of Profit and Loss  for the year ended 31st March 2012    
 

The notes referred to above form integral part of balance sheet
As per our audit report of even date

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
N. A. Shah Associates Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116560W Firm Registration No.: 113496W

Sandeep Shah Satish C. Trivedi Kewalchand P. Jain Vikas P. Jain
Partner Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director
Membership No. 37381 Membership No. 38317

Abhijit B. Warange

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Company Secretary & General 
Manager - Compliance
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Cash Flow Statement  for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)
Particulars  2011-2012  2010-2011 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Dividend Income 

deposits and investments 
 -   

Provision  for Contingencies 1,200,000 
 -   

Provision for Share of Loss in  Joint Venture  -   

 -   
Interest Income 

Changes in assets and liabilities 
Trade receivable and other assets 
Inventories 
Trade payables, liabilities and provisions 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 20,000,000 

 -   
Dividend Income 

Cash Flow Statement 
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Cash Flow Statement  for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)
Particulars  2011-2012  2010-2011 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 -   

Secured foreign currency loan repaid  -   
 -   

Interest paid 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - OPENING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - CLOSING    

statement

` ` 

The notes referred to above form integral part of balance sheet
As per our audit report of even date

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
N. A. Shah Associates Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116560W Firm Registration No.: 113496W

Sandeep Shah Satish C. Trivedi Kewalchand P. Jain Vikas P. Jain
Partner Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director
Membership No. 37381 Membership No. 38317

Abhijit B. Warange

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Company Secretary & General 
Manager - Compliance
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and the future periods.

`

are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. 

c)  Software is amortised over a period of three years on straight-line basis.

e)  Leasehold Lands are amortised over the period of lease or useful life whichever is lower.

value at the weighted average cost of capital.

  Long-term investments are stated at cost less diminution (other than temporary) in value. Current investments are stated at cost or fair value (net 
asset value in case of units of mutual fund); whichever is lower, computed category wise for related investments. Investments in liquid mutual funds 

  Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. In determining the holding cost of investments and the gain or loss on sale of 

goods.

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

b) Service Income is recognised upon rendering of services.

c) Licensing revenue is recognised in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

rate as per agreement of sale of electricity by the Company.

by import of capital goods.

recognised funds.

of the difference between the actuarial valuation and the fund balance with the LIC, if any, is accrued at the year-end. The gratuity liability is 
determined on basis of actuarial valuation as at year end. The actuarial valuation method used for measuring the liability is the projected unit 
credit method. 

on un-discounted basis.

arrangement over the term of relevant lease.

80



  Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that a cash 

the current best estimate. 

  Contingent liability is disclosed when there is (a) possible obligation or (b) a present obligation, which is not recognised since it is not probable that 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

  Borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised upto the date when such assets are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing 

2.      NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)
Particulars

SHARE CAPITAL 2.1

20,000,000 (P.Y. 20,000,000)  Equity shares of `10 each   200,000,000  200,000,000 

`10 each, fully paid up

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having 
a par value of `

share. 

 2.1.1 

 2.1.2 

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

Particulars 31st March 2012  31st March 2011 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

the Company
 2.1.3 

held held 

Mr.Dinesh P Jain

Sangeeta D. Jain

Kesar V. Jain

Mr. Kewalchand P Jain

Veena K. Jain
 1,200,000  1,200,000 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 

 
paid up.)
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)
Particulars

RESERVES AND SURPLUS  2.2 

General Reserve
Opening Balance 

Opening balance

 Appropriations
Proposed Dividend
Interim Dividend 

 2,132,208,120  1,854,316,034 
`

equity share of `

of the Company.  

 2.2.1

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  2.3 

Other Liabilities
Security Deposits

 38,661,577  32,608,000 
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Other Long Term Provisions

 6,946,819  8,144,063 

a)

b) Others
 -   

( Secured by lien on Term Deposit)
  148,903,166  55,537,769 

TRADE PAYABLE
a) Micro and Small Enterprises   

 
b) Other then Micro and Small Enterprises

Materials

 157,817,077  153,318,451 

Notes
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`)
Particulars

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -   

Unclaimed Dividend
Security Deposits
Others Payable
    Capital Goods
    Salary and wages Payable

    Statutory Liabilities

 100,737,767  75,317,656

a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers
 - 

 -  - 

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

 -   

 144,211,328  216,105,492 

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 
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`)

Particulars

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS  2.10 

a ) Trade Investments (Unquoted)
Investment in Joint Venture White Knitwear Private Limited
In Equity shares
330,000 (P.Y. 330,000 ) Shares of face value ` 10 each, fully paid up.  3,300,000  3,300,000 
In Preference shares 

face value of `10 each fully paid up.
b) Other than Trade Investments(Quoted)

In Equity shares

` 10 each fully 
paid up. 
1 (P.Y. 1) Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited Share of face value 
` 10 each fully paid up. 

 330  330 

 35,077,783  35,135,536 

-  Unquoted Shares

"The Company had invested in aggregate ` `

Venture ""White Knitwear Private Limited"" (WKPL). WKPL had acquired land in 

 

for the year ended March 2012 in view of the value of underlying assets base of 
joint venture. The Company as a matter of abundant precaution made provision 
towards its share of  aggregating to ` `

 2.10.1 

DEFERRED TAX  2.11 

Various Items including Provision for assets and others
Depreciation

 -    -   
 17,275,564  16,426,023 

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 
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`)

Particulars

2.11.1

 2.11.2 

LONG-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES  2.12 

(Unsecured considered good)
 -    20,000,000 

`

Loan to Employees  -   

 102,619,889  103,786,347 

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS  2.13 

Customer Security Deposits

 8,696,220  17,092,184 

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

`

 -   

Birla Sunlife Short Term FMP Series 10 - Dividend  -   

 -   

 -    10,000,000 

 -   

 -    20,000,000 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

Notes
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`)

Particulars
 - 

Birla Sunlife Short Term FMP Series  23  - 

 -   

 -   

 -   

Birla sunlife FMP-series EE growth  -   

 -   

 10,000,000  -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 280,692,911  147,913,751 

 -    -   

Finished goods

Traded goods

Stores, chemicals and consumables
 320,931,825  368,138,788 

TRADE RECEIVABLE
a) Debtors (Secured against Customer Security Deposit)

i)
ii) Others

b) Debtors (Unsecured)
i)

a) Considered Good
b) Doubtful

ii) Others
a) Considered Good
b) Doubtful

 517,945,673  304,623,598 

 
(1) ` `  
(2) ` `

 504,936,053  299,323,598 

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 
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`)

Particulars

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand

       In Current accounts

(Includes deposits ` `

maturity)

` `

cash.

 1,015,474,267  1,038,914,451 

a) Face Value of `
 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

Templeton India Low Duration Fund - Monthly Dividend  -   

 -   

-

 -    20,000,000 

Templeton India Income Opportunity Fund-Growth  -    20,000,000 

 127,180,833  64,643,744 
b) Face Value of `
Birla Sunlife Savings Fund-Daily Dividend  -   

-

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

Notes
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`)

Particulars

 37,974,282  -   
c) Face Value of `

 -   

 -   

IDFC Cash Fund - Growth  -   

 45,484,979  20,793,663 

 -    -   

SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Loans Given to Employee
 20,000,000  20,000,000 

Deposits

Other assets
 49,465,432  43,333,481 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 74,365,336  21,335,782 

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 
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`)

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2012 
For the Year Ended  

31st March 2011

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  2.20 

Sale of Power

Service Income

Miscellaneous Operating Income

 3,018,984,273  2,366,211,454 
OTHER INCOME  2.21 

 -   

Dividend Income

 -   

 117,814,212  83,399,991 

(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCKS  2.22 

       Finished goods

       Finished goods 

goods

 COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED  2.23 

b. Semi-Finished Goods
c.
d. Stores, Chemicals and Consumables

Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2012 
For the Year Ended  

31st March 2011

PERSONNEL COST

Contribution to Provident and other Funds

Staff Welfare
 292,362,746  257,754,187 

MANUFACTURING AND OPERATING EXPENSES

`  
`

Processing charges

Water Charges 
Waste Disposal Charges

 235,896,741  172,406,042 

ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENSES

Insurance Premium(net of recoveries)
Legal and Professional fees
Consultancy Fees
Printing and Stationery
Donations

Directors Sitting Fees
Sundry balance written off  -   
Provision for Dimunition in value of investments -

` `  -   
Bad Debts

 -   
Provision for Doubtful debts
Provision for share of loss in Joint Venture (refer note 2.10.1)  -   

 119,112,407  88,878,446 
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`)

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2012 
For the Year Ended  

31st March 2011

SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Commission on Sales
Discount and rebates on Sales
Octroi, clearing and forwarding charges on Sales

 -   
Provision for Contingencies  1,200,000  -   

 329,049,890  262,008,266 

FINANCE EXPENSES 

 -   
Finance charges

Other Interest
 25,923,506  20,591,010 

AGGREGATE EXPENSES

Insurance Premium(net of recoveries)
 3,548,117  3,775,862 

AUDITORS REMUNERATION (CURRENT YEAR FIGURES ARE NET OF 
SERVICE TAX)

2.30
 330,000 

For Others matters
 - 

Total  2,689,698  2,070,769 

C.I.F.VALUE OF IMPORTS 2.31

Capital goods
Components and spare parts

Consumable goods  - 
Total  48,575,116  41,398,452 

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)

Particulars
For the Year Ended 

31st March 2012 
For the Year Ended  

31st March 2011

EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES 2.32

 - 

Consultancy Fees  - 
Others  - 

EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES 2.33

 - 
Total  117,381,000  72,506,632 

 INDIGENOUS AND IMPORTED CONSUMPTION

Total  1,185,512,958  947,947,273 

DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Material
Woven Fabric
Knitted Fabric

Stores, chemicals and consumables
Total  1,185,512,958  947,947,273 

 DETAILS OF PRODUCTS SOLD

Total  3,001,307,001  2,352,827,132 

2.37   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

`

dependent on outcome of matter under dispute.

`  
` ` `

favour of customs authority aggregating ` `

` `

` `

d)  Guarantee of ` `

of ` `
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

2.38 ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF CONTRACTS REMAINING TO BE EXECUTED ON- 
` `

` 

respect of minimum lease rental payment under non-cancellable operating lease

2.39  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 

a)   Disclosure in respect of gratuity liability

31st March, 2012 
(`)

31st March, 2011 
(`)

Liability at the beginning of the year
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost

Liability at the end of the year

31st March, 2012 
(`)

31st March, 2011 
(`)

Contributions

31st March, 2012 
(`)

31st March, 2011 
(`)

Liability at the end of the year

Liability  in the Balance Sheet

 31st March, 2012 
(`)

31st March, 2011 
(`)

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost

Pr 31st March, 2012 31st March, 2011

Employee Turnover
Salary Escalation
Mortality Table

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

Other disclosures 31st March, 2012 
(`)

31st March, 2011 
 (`)

31st March, 2010 
 (`)

 
 

 
(`)

Plan assets

provision has been made for short fall between liability as per actuarial valuation and value of plan assets. The estimates of future salary increases, 

given by LIC of India.

`

is rendered.  

employees. The insurance premium of ` `

d)  The Company contributes towards Employees Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance and Labour Welfare Fund. The aggregate amount  
` `

2.40  SEGMENT REPORTING:

also generating power from Wind Turbine Generator. The power generated from the same is predominantly used for captive consumption. 

does not require disclosure as a separate reportable segment. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the 
accounting policies of the Company.

`)
Particulars Apparel & 

Life style 
Accessories

Other\ Reconciling 
Item

Unallocated Total

-
(-)

- -

(-) (-)
3,018,615,844 368,429 - 3,018,984,273

-
-
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)
Particulars Apparel & 

Life style 
Accessories

Other\ Reconciling 
Item

Unallocated Total

763,146,502

521,408,011

Segment Liabilities -
 (-)

-
(-)

- -
(-)

- -
(-) (-)

 

   `)

Particulars India Outside India Total
  

  

nature of business and manufacturing facility, other information is not ascertainable.

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

2.41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:

  

  White Knitwear Private Limited

Kewalchand P. Jain Chairman & Managing Director
Whole-time Director

Dinesh P. Jain Whole-time Director
Whole-time Director

Shantaben P Jain (Mother of Key Management Personnel)

Veena K. Jain (Wife of Kewalchand P. Jain.)

Sangeeta D. Jain (Wife of Dinesh P. Jain)
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

   
`)

Enterprises 
under the Same 

management

Joint Venture
Concerns of Key 

Management 
Personnel

Key 
Management 

Personnel

Employee Funds

- - - -
(-) (-) (-) (-)

- - -
(-) (-) (-)

- - - -
(-) (-) (-) (-)

Salary
- - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-)
- - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-)

Dividend Paid
- - -

(-) (-) (-)

Donation Paid
- - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-)

Contribution to Gratuity Fund
- - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-)

Sundry Payable 
- -

(-) (-)
- - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-)

- - -
(-) (-) (-)

Investments
- - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-)

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

`)

Kewalchand P. Jain

Dinesh P. Jain

Shantaben P. Jain

Kewalchand P. Jain

Dinesh P. Jain

Salary

Dividend Paid

Kewalchand P. Jain

Dinesh P. Jain

Contribution to Gratuity Fund Employee Fund

Donation Paid
Chouhan Charitable Trust

Lord Gautam charitable foundation
(-)
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

2.42  OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS:

` ` 

includes contingent lease rent of ` `

 
Particulars 31st March, 2012

 (`)
31stMarch,2011

 (`)
Due not later than one year

Total 75,838,361 109,978,728

on the commitment for delivery by lessors. 

iii.  The afore-mentioned lease rentals include a lease the period of which is dependent on the occurrence of an event, the date of 

them (a) not later than 1 year ` ` ` `

`210,000 (P.Y. `  1,110,000). 

` ` ` 
`

2.43  JOINT VENTURE INFORMATION:

(i)  Detail of Interest in Joint Venture

Description of Interest Country of Incorporation Percentage of interest as 
on 31st March, 2012

Percentage of interest 
as on 

31st March, 2011
White Knitwear Private 
Limited

Equity Shareholding India

(ii)  Company’s Interest in the Joint Venture 

(`)
Liabilities (`) Income

 (`)  (`)
White Knitwear Private 
Limited

   The Company’s share in the contingent liability and capital commitment of the Joint Venture are ̀ ` ` `

   The Company’s contingent liability and capital commitment in relation to joint venture ` ` ` `

Notes
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Notes on accounts for the year ended 31st March 2012 

2.44  DISCLOSURE REGARDING DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE:

31st March, 2012 31st March, 2011
Particulars Currency

Currency
`

Currency
`

USD
Trade Payables USD

USD
USD

Balance in EEFC account USD
Foreign currency in hand Multiple  - -

2.45  PROVISIONS:

Particulars Provision for Contingencies (Special 

Others)

Provision for margin on sales return

31st March, 2012
(`)

31st March, 2011
(`)

31st March, 2012
(`)

31st 
March, 2011

(`)

31st March, 2012
(`)

31st March, 2011
(`)

Opening Balance - -
1,200,000 -

Utilisation - - -
- 1,000,000 - -

Closing Balance -

2.46

The notes referred to above form integral part of balance sheet
As per our audit report of even date

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
N. A. Shah Associates Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116560W Firm Registration No.: 113496W

Sandeep Shah Satish C. Trivedi Kewalchand P. Jain Vikas P. Jain
Partner Partner Chairman & Managing Director Wholetime Director
Membership No. 37381 Membership No. 38317

Abhijit B. Warange

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10th May, 2012

Company Secretary & General 
Manager - Compliance
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Kewalchand P. Jain
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Hemant P. Jain
Whole-time Director

Mr. Dinesh P. Jain
Whole-time Director

Mr. Vikas P. Jain
Whole-time Director

Mr. Popatlal F. Sundesha
Director

Dr. Prakash A.Mody
Director

Mr. Nimish G. Pandya
Director

Mr. Mrudul D. Inamdar
Director

Mr. S. L. Kothari
  

Mr. Abhijit Warange 
Company Secretary &  
General Manager - Compliance  

Statutory Auditors 

M/s. Jain & Trivedi
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai

M/s. N.A. Shah Associates
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai

Internal Auditors

M/s. Bhandarkar & Kale
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai

Solomon and Co. Mumbai 
Solicitors and Advocates

Standard Chartered Bank, 
Mumbai
Bankers

Kewal Kiran Estate, 460/7, I.B. 
Patel Road, Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai: 400 063

Link Intime India Private 
Limited, C-13, Pannalal Silk 
Mills Compounds, L.B.S. Marg, 
Bhandup (West), 
Mumbai: 400 078
Registrar & Transfer Agents

Factories

Vapi
Plot No. 787/1, 40, shed
IInd Phase, G.I.D.C
Vapi: 396 195
Gujarat
Vapi

Plot No. 787/3, 40, shed
IInd Phase, G.I.D.C
Vapi: 396 195
Gujarat

Daman
697/3/5/5A/13, Near Maharani Estate,
Somnath Road, Dhabel
Daman: 396 210

Mumbai

Opp. Virwani Industrial Estate
Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai: 400 063

71-73, Kasturchand Mill Estate
Bhawani Shankar Road, 
Dadar (West), 
Mumbai: 400 028

Land Survey No.1119/P Village 
Kuchhadi Taluka Porbunder 
District Porbunder 
Gujarat
Windmill

http://www.kewalkiran.com
Website
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Kewal Kiran Estate, Behind Tirupati Udyog, 460 / 7, 
I.B. Patel Road, Goregaon (East), Mumbai: 400 063.
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WWW.KEWALKIRAN.COM



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.5
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo false
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 100
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 20
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 20
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 1.30
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 10
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 300
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 20
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
>
    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e5c4f5e55663e793a3001901a8fc775355b5090ae4ef653d190014ee553ca901a8fc756e072797f5153d15e03300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc87a25e55986f793a3001901a904e96fb5b5090f54ef650b390014ee553ca57287db2969b7db28def4e0a767c5e03300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>
>
    /HRV <>
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020d654ba740020d45cc2dc002c0020c804c7900020ba54c77c002c0020c778d130b137c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor weergave op een beeldscherm, e-mail en internet. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 6.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for on-screen display, e-mail, and the Internet.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 6.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 6
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing false
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [72 72]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


